Appendix A



Haringey Schools Policies Model Pay Policy

Status: This Model Pay Policy is effective from September 2019. A process of consultation with the relevant trade unions has been undertaken. This policy is the recommended policy for adoption by the Governing Bodies of Community and Voluntary Controlled schools. Voluntary aided or foundation schools may also choose to adopt it Advice and support on this policy is available from the School's HR service.

Page 2 of 32 Date of issue: 1 Oct 2019

Contents

1.	Introduction	4
2.	Principles	4
3.	Roles and Responsibilities	5
4.	Equality	6
5.	Support staff pay	6
6.	Teachers' pay	7
6.1	Pay Reviews and Progression	7
6.2	Absence or partial completion of objectives	8
6.3	Headteacher Pay	8
Dete	rmining the Headteacher group and pay range	8
On A	ppointment:	8
6.4	Headteacher pay progression (See 6.1 for further details)	9
6.5	Temporary payments to the headteacher	9
6.6	Overall limits on Headteacher pay	10
6.7	Deputy/Assistant headteachers	10
Dete	rmining the Deputy / Assistant headteacher pay range	10
6.8	Deputy / Assistant headteacher pay progression (See 6.1 for further details)	11
6.9	Leading practitioners	11
Dete	rmining the Leading Practitioner pay range	12
6.10	Classroom teachers	12
6.11	Upper Pay Range	12
6.12	Main pay range	13
6.13	Newly Qualified Teachers	13
6.14	Unqualified Teachers Pay Range	14
6.15	Unqualified Teachers' Allowance	14
7	Allowances for classroom teachers	15
8	Teacher Pay Appeals	19
Appe	endix 1: Progression to the Upper Pay Range	21
Appe	endix 2: Application to be paid on the Upper Pay Range	23
Appe	endix 3 – Teacher Pay Appeals	24
Арре	endix 4 – Teachers Pay Scales for 2018/19	26

1. Introduction

- 1.1 This pay policy seeks to ensure that all staff are fairly and equitably rewarded for their contribution to the school. This policy is intended to be a whole school policy; however, it predominately relates to setting a framework for making decisions on teachers pay.
- 1.2 This policy has been developed to comply with current legislation and the requirements of the School Teachers Pay and Conditions Document 2019 (STPCD). This policy should be read and implemented in accordance with the STPCD.
- 1.3 Changes in the pay of support staff in community schools will be determined in accordance with the Council's decisions as recommended to governing bodies. The Council will consult with recognised trade unions prior to making any changes to this policy.
- 1.4 The pay policy will work in conjunction with the school's teacher appraisal policy with regard to pay decisions (which are linked to individual performance), and the appraisal policy should be read in conjunction with this policy.
- 1.5 The policy will be reviewed annually by the governing body and particularly where there are changes in the STPCD affecting areas of discretion to be exercised by the "relevant body" (which, for community schools, is the governing body).

2. Principles

- 2.1 The governing body is committed to the operation of an appraisal process for teachers and support staff, with the objective of supporting the progress of pupils and the maximising professional development of all staff.
- 2.2 In this school, all staff can expect to receive regular, constructive feedback on their performance. In addition, all staff will be given an annual appraisal that recognises their strengths, informs plans for their future development, and helps to enhance their professional practice. For teachers, decisions regarding pay progression will be made annually with reference to the most recent appraisal report.
- 2.3 The governing body will ensure that its processes are open, transparent and fair. All decisions made in line with this policy will be reasonable and justified.

Page 4 of 32 Date of issue: 1 Oct 2019

3. Roles and Responsibilities

3.1 The governing body will:

- Maintain and improve the quality of education offered by the school by adopting a
 pay policy, which supports the school's overall aims and priorities (as set out in
 the school developmentplan).
- Balance the competing demands made on the school's limited budget so that all needs are addressed as effectively as possible.
- Manage its pay policy in a fair, reasonable and open manner.
- Keep its policy in line with the government's initiatives around workforce reform.
- Support the Council's policy to pay employees an hourly rate no lower than the London Living Wage as announced by the Mayor of London. Contractors are encouraged to commit to paying the London Living Wage to staff they employ to provide services to the school.
- In relation specifically to leadership pay:
 - Consider annually whether or not to increase the salary of members of the leadership group;
 - Set the appropriate levels of pay for the different roles;
 - Assure themselves that appropriate arrangements for linking appraisal to pay are in place and can be applied consistently, and that pay decisions can be reasonable and justified;
 - Approve salaries and the award of performance pay in line with the school's pay policy; and
 - Identify and consider budgetary implications of pay decisions and consider these in the school's spendingplan.
- Establish a pay committee, comprising of at least three governors. All governors will be eligible for membership of the pay committee and will be eligible to take part in any discussions (including those relating to individuals) where their interest cannot be called into question in terms of any form of bias to one individual or another on the basis of prior, existing or expected future relationships, professional or personal. Decisions of the pay committee will be placed in the confidential section of the governing body's agenda.

3.2 The Pay Committee will:

- Ratify pay decisions for individual teachers as required by the pay policy, taking into account the recommendations contained within appraisal documentation;
- Review the implementation of the policy annually including assessment of the impact of the policy on progression trends to ensure compliance with equalities legislation, consulting with the headteacher, staff and trade union representatives; and submitting findings to the governing body for approval; and
- Be responsible for organising teacher pay appeals.

3.3 The headteacher will:

Page 5 of 32 Date of issue: 1 Oct 2019

- Submit any updated pay policy to the governing body for approval;
- Ensure that the school's Senior Leadership Team (SLT) are briefed as appropriate on the application of the governing body's approach to linking performance appraisal to pay progression and ensure consistency of approach in the application of this policy;
- Have the final say on all recommendations in relations to pay progression or otherwise:
- Submit pay recommendations to the governing body and ensure the governing body has sufficient information upon which to make pay decisions;
- Ensure that teachers are informed about decisions reached and that records are kept of recommendations and decisions made.

4. Equality

4.1 Decisions relating to pay must always be applied fairly and in accordance with employment legislation and the school's Equality and Diversity in Employment Policy.

5. Support staff pay

- 5.1 The governing body will apply the national (the National Joint Council for Local Government Services National Agreement on Pay and Conditions of Service Green Book) and locally agreed conditions of service.
- 5.2 The Greater London Provincial Council (GLPC) job evaluation methodology for support staff should be used as a method of reviewing grades when duties change, jobs are created or the governing body reviews salaries for support staff. Grading structures and allowances will reflect those set out in the Equal Pay & Conditions Review – "Single Status" Agreement (2008).
- 5.3 Where an employee was previously employed under Local Government service conditions of service immediately prior to his/her taking up a post at the school the employee will be paid a salary at the equivalent spinal point where this is within the overall grade of the post.
- 5.4 Support staff can appeal a job evaluation grading if their grade goes down or they can request a review of their grade evaluation by their HR provider if the job is evaluated at the same grade as previously, or a lower than the expected grade. Advice from the school's HR service will be sought on the specifics of the appeal process.
- 5.5 For additional time limited tasks, an honorarium may be paid. Where honoraria are proposed a record should be kept of the additional work undertaken by the individual and any advice sought from the school's HR service on the appropriate size of the honoraria. Where honoraria are being considered consideration should be given to ensuring all staff have equal access to the opportunity. Honoraria shall be reviewed

Page 6 of 32 Date of issue: 1 Oct 2019

- regularly and will not be used as a substitute for updating structures and job descriptions where the change is likely to be permanent.
- 5.6 Where a post's hourly rate falls beneath the London Living Wage rate, a supplement shall be paid to the Employee to bring them up to this level. In line with the Haringey agreement increases in the London Living Wage rate shall be effective from the date of the announcement from the Mayor's Office.

6. Teachers' pay

All teachers employed at the school are paid in accordance with the statutory provisions of the STPCD, as updated. A copy of the STPCD 2019 may be viewed online at www.gov.uk.

6.1 Pay Reviews and Progression

- 6.1.1. The governing body (through the pay committee) will ensure that every teacher's salary is reviewed with effect from (and any decisions backdated to) 1 September each year and no later than 31 October (31 December for headteachers). Where a teacher is on long-term absence at the relevant time consideration will be given to adjusting the timing on a case-by-case basis. By 31 October, the governing body will provide the teacher with an individual written statement setting out their salary and any allowances to which they are entitled.
- 6.1.2 Pay reviews for all teachers, including the headteacher, will be conducted in line with the STPCD, and will be based on performance as recorded through staff appraisal. Pay progression is not automatic for teachers. Every appraisal report will contain a pay recommendation (see the teacher appraisal policy). Final decisions about whether or not to accept pay recommendations will be made by the governing body (through the pay committee where appropriate), having regard to evidence provided as part of the performance appraisal review and process. All pay decisions (i.e. no movement, one point or two points) will be clearly attributable to the performance of the teacher. The governing body /pay committee must be able to justify its decision.
- 6.1.3 For eligible teachers to move up the teachers" pay range, all teachers, including the headteacher will need to have successfully completed their appraisal. The evidence used will be only that available through the performance appraisal process as outlined in the teacher appraisal policy.
- 6.1.4 Decisions not to progress up the pay spine will only be made in circumstances where concerns about standards of performance have already been raised as part of the appraisal process.

Page 7 of 32 Date of issue: 1 Oct 2019

6.1.5 Reviews may take place at other times of the year to reflect any changes in circumstances or job description that leads to a change in the basis for calculating an individual's pay. A written statement will be provided after any review and where applicable will give information about the basis on which a decision was made.

6.2 Absence or partial completion of objectives

6.2.1 Where a teacher has been absent for some or all of the appraisal cycle, for example, as a result of long-term sickness absence or maternity leave, the assessment in relation to pay progression will be based on performance during any period of attendance and/or prior performance. In exceptional circumstances, for example, where objectives have not been fully met due to factors entirely outside the control of the appraisee, the appraiser may apply discretion in recommending pay progression where good progress towards objectives has been made.

6.3 Headteacher Pay

Determining the Headteacher group and pay range

6.3.1 The governing body will assign the school to a headteacher group as set out in the STPCD by reference to the school's total unit score, calculated in accordance with the STPCD before determining the headteacher's pay range for the post. This determination includes STPCD advice on headteacher pay if the headteacher is appointed as headteacher of more than one school. In any determination or redetermination of leadership pay, the pay range for the headteacher will start no lower than the minimum of the relevant headteacher group and the pay range for any deputy or assistant head.

On Appointment:

- 6.3.2 When determining the headteacher pay range, the governing body will take into account:
 - all the permanent responsibilities of the role, including any permanent responsibility as the headteacher of more than one school:
 - any challenges that are specific to the role;
 - all the other relevant considerations, for example, any recruitment and retention difficulties, the requirements for a fixed-term appointment or candidate specifications, including how well the appointee meets the requirements of the post; and
 - how much room is appropriate for progression for the individual?
- 6.3.3 The governing body may also determine to use its discretion to set the leadership pay range up to 25% above the headteacher group. In exceptional circumstances that are supported by a robust business case, the governing body may agree to award above the 25% limit. In both such circumstances the governing body must seek external independent advice (e.g. from the LA) before a decision.

Page 8 of 32 Date of issue: 1 Oct 2019

- 6.3.4 When determining the headteacher pay range to advertise, the governing body will consider whether or not it would pay above the advertised pay range for an exceptional candidate. If the governing body considers that it would, this information will be clearly stated in the advertisement and/or recruitment pack. The governing body will record its reasons for the determination of the head pay range and salary on appointment.
- 6.3.5 Where the headteacher pay range has been determined prior to 1 September 2011 and is above the calculated group size, it will remain in place for so long as that headteacher pay range applies and until a new determination is made. A new determination must be made should the headteacher post become vacant.
- 6.3.6 Where the governing body has, prior to 1 September 2011, made a decision to increase the individual school range beyond the maximum of the leadership pay range this will remain in place and the governing body will continue to determine the value of each point above the highest point for so long as that headteacher pay range applies.
- 6.3.7 The governing body will ensure that the process of determining the remuneration of the headteacher is fair and transparent. There will be a proper record made of the reasoning behind the determination of the headteacher pay range and the ratification of decisions made in this respect.
- 6.3.8 The headteacher pay range for the academic year 2019-2020 is as set out in Appendix 4.

6.4 Headteacher pay progression (See 6.1 for further details)

- 6.4.1 One-point progression will be awarded where there has been a sustained high quality of performance, with particular regard to leadership, management and pupil progress at the school. The governing body may consider awarding two-point progression where performance is assessed as having significantly exceeded the sustained and high quality of performance that must be demonstrated for one-point progression.
- 6.4.2 The pay committee may re-determine the serving headteachers "pay range", in accordance with the provisions of the STPCD, as at 1 September or at any time if they consider it is necessary and justified.

6.5 Temporary payments to the headteacher

- 6.5.1 An additional temporary payment (of up to 25% of annual salary) in accordance with the provisions of the STPCD will only be considered for additional responsibilities that are undertaken on a clearly temporary or irregular basis, and which have not already been taken into account when determining the headteacher pay range, for example, any temporary responsibility for additional schools. All recruitment and retention considerations must be taken into account when setting the headteacher's pay range.
- 6.5.2 The pay committee will consider using its discretion, in wholly exceptional circumstances, to exceed the 25% limit on temporary payments, as set out in the STPCD. However,

Page 9 of 32 Date of issue: 1 Oct 2019

before agreeing to do so, it will seek the agreement of the governing body, which in turn will seek external independent advice before providing such agreement.

6.6 Overall limits on Headteacher pay

- 6.6.1 Ordinarily, the pay committee will ensure that the total sum of salary and any other payments made to the headteacher in any school year does not exceed 25% above the maximum of the headteacher group, excepting any additional payments made for residential duties that are a requirement of the post or payment in respect of relocation benefits which relate solely to the personal circumstances of the headteacher.
- 6.6.2 In wholly exceptional circumstances, the governing body will consider using its discretion to exceed the normal limits on temporary payments and the sum of total salary, as set out in the STPCD. However, before agreeing to do so, the governing body will seek advice from the Council before providing such agreement.

6.7 Deputy/Assistant headteachers

Determining the Deputy / Assistant headteacher pay range

- 6.7.1 Posts will meet the basic criterion of "leadership responsibilities across the whole school to be paid on the leadership pay ranges. The professional duties of deputy and assistant headteachers are set out within the STPCD 2019.
- 6.7.2 The governing body will determine a five point pay range for deputy and assistant headteachers on 1 September each year or at any other time of year in the following circumstances:
 - When it proposes to make new appointments, or
 - Where there is a significant change in circumstances and / or the responsibilities of serving deputy or assistant headteachers.
- 6.7.3 The governing body will, when a new appointment needs to be made, determine the pay range to be advertised and agree pay on appointment as follows
 - Teachers will start no lower than the minimum of the leadership scale;
 - The pay committee will determine a pay range which must take into account all of the
 permanent responsibilities of the role, any challenges that are specific to the role,
 and all other relevant considerations, including recruitment and retention factors;
 - Ensure that salary on appointment is such that there is scope for future performance related pay progression.
- 6.7.4 In making any decision to exercise its discretion in this respect, the governing body will ensure that to action such an increase will offer the school value for money in the services it is able to provide in relation to the costs incurred and will require evidence to support any such case. The governing body will record the rationale for leadership pay determinations and the reasons for any redetermination of pay.

Page 10 of 32 Date of issue: 1 Oct 2019

- 6.7.5 When determining the deputy/assistant head pay range to advertise, the governing body will consider whether or not it would pay above the advertised pay range for an exceptional candidate. If the governing body considers that it would, this information will be clearly stated in the advertisement and/or recruitment pack. The pay committee will record its reasons for the determination of the deputy/assistant head pay range and salary on appointment.
- 6.7.6 The governing body has determined that [number] deputy headteacher posts and [number] assistant headteacher posts are to be included in the school's staffing structure. Where there is more than one deputy headteacher or more than one assistant headteacher, the governing body have the discretion to determine different pay ranges for each post.
- 6.7.7 The governing body has determined a pay range for deputy and assistant headteachers in accordance the provisions of the STPCD 2019 with due regard to pay rates for other teaching posts and the headteacher.
- 6.7.8 The pay range for deputy headteachers for the academic year 2019-2020 as set out in Appendix 4.
- 6.7.9 The pay range for assistant headteachers for the academic year 2019-2020 is as set out in Appendix 4.
- 6.8 **Deputy / Assistant headteacher pay progression** (See 6.1 for further details)
- 6.8.1 One-point progression will be awarded where there has been a sustained, high quality of performance, with particular regard to leadership, management and pupil progress at the school. The governing body may consider awarding two-point progression where performance is assessed as having significantly exceeded the sustained and high quality of performance that must be demonstrated for one-point progression.

OTHER CLASS ROOM TEACHERS

6.9 Leading practitioners

- 6.9.1 The governing body has determined that [number] leading practitioner posts are to be included in the school's staffing structure. These posts have the primary purpose of modelling and leading improvement of teaching skills. Additional duties will be set out in the job description of the leading practitioner. Successful candidates will demonstrate excellence in teaching and will be able to contribute to leading the improvement of teaching skills.
- 6.9.2 Where there is more than one leading practitioner post, the governing body have the discretion to determine different pay ranges for each post. The governing body will be Page 11 of 32

 Date of issue: 1 Oct 2019

able to justify its decision.

Determining the Leading Practitioner pay range

- 6.9.3 The pay range for each leading practitioner post for the academic year 2019-2020 is set out in Appendix 4.
- 6.9.4 A Leading Practitioner is not eligible for a teaching and learning responsibility payment or a special educational needs allowance.

Progression on the Leading practitioner pay range (See 6.1 for further details)

6.9.5 The governing body will consider awarding one pay point on the individual range for the post having regard to evidence provided as part of the Performance Appraisal review, the appraisal report, the relevant teachers' standards and taking into account advice from senior leaders. The governing body may consider awarding two-point progression where performance is assessed as having significantly exceeded the sustained and high quality of performance that must be demonstrated for one-point progression.

6.10 Classroom teachers

Onappointment

6.10.1 Although governing bodies are no longer required to match a teachers" existing salary on either the main, upper or the unqualified pay scales, governors will ensure that the existing pay point of teachers applying for posts in the school is matched where the salary reflects an appropriate reference point in this policy. In exceptional circumstances, the governing body reserves the right to consider offering a higher alternative salary level. Advice will be sought from school's HR service before any such decision is taken.

6.11 Upper Pay Range

- 6.11.1 Qualified teachers who have applied for and been assessed by this school as meeting the standards for payment on the Upper Pay Range will be paid in accordance with the school's upper pay range as set out in Appendix 4. The criteria and process to progress to the Upper Pay range can be found in Appendix B and C.
- 6.11.2 Any points awarded on the upper pay range are permanent, while the teacher remains in the same post or takes up another post in this school.

Progression on the Upper Pay Range (See 6.1 above and Appendix 1 & 2 for further details)

6.11.3 All decisions regarding pay progression will be made annually with reference to the most Page 12 of 32

Date of issue: 1 Oct 2019

recent appraisal report. UPR teachers will be eligible to progress to the next point on the school's upper pay range where their appraisal outcome confirms that their performance over at least two academic years in this school has been highly competent in all elements of the Teachers standards and that their achievements and contribution to the school are substantial and sustained. Pay progression will be judged as evidenced by Performance Appraisal outcomes.

- 6.11.4 Any points awarded on the upper pay range are permanent, while the teacher remains in the same post or takes up another post in this school.
- 6.11.5 For new appointees the teacher's performance appraisal reports from previous schools can be considered by the Headteacher and/ governing body where it assists with pay progression decisions

6.12 Main pay range

- 6.12.1 Qualified teachers who have not been assessed as meeting the criteria to access to upper pay range will be paid in accordance with the main pay range.
- 6.12.2 The Governing Body has adopted the following main pay range as set out in Appendix 4.
- 6.12.3 In determining where on the main pay range an individual teacher should be placed on appointment, the governing body will consider
 - Specialist skills and knowledge
 - Specialist qualifications
 - Number of year's teaching experience
 - The teacher's current remuneration

Progression on the Main Pay Range (See 6.1 for further details)

- 6.12.4 The evidence used will be only that available through the performance management/appraisal process, and meeting the teacher's standards taking into account their role in the school. The governing body may consider awarding two-point progression where performance is assessed as having significantly exceeded the sustained and high quality of performance that must be demonstrated for one-point progression. Decisions not to progress up the pay spine will be made in circumstances where concerns about standards of performance have been raised in writing as part of the appraisal process.
- 6.12.5 The pay committee will be advised by the headteacher in making all such decisions. Any increase (i.e. no movement, one point, more than one point) will be clearly attributable to the performance of the teacher in question. The pay committee must be able to justify objectively its decisions.

6.13 Newly Qualified Teachers

Page 13 of 32 Date of issue: 1 Oct 2019

6.13.1 Decisions on pay progression for newly qualified teachers subject to statutory induction arrangements will be taken by 31st October each year to take effect on and be backdated to 1st September of that year and will be based on a recommendation from the headteacher which takes account of the teacher's assessment under the induction arrangements and against the Teachers" Standards. Judgments will be properly rooted in evidence provided as part of the Induction process.

6.14 Unqualified Teachers Pay Range

- 6.14.1 An unqualified teacher is either a trainee working towards qualified teacher status, an overseas trained teacher who has not exceeded the four years they are allowed without obtaining qualified teacher status, or an instructor with a particular skill.
- 6.14.2 In determining where on the unqualified teacher range an individual teacher should be placed on appointment, the governing body will consider:
 - Specialist skills and knowledge
 - Specialist qualifications
 - Previous teaching experience
 - The teacher's current remuneration
- 6.14.3 The school's pay range for an unqualified teacher is as set out in Appendix 4.

Progression on the Unqualified Pay Range (See 6.1 for further details)

- 6.14.4 Any pay points awarded to unqualified teachers are permanent, while the teacher remains in the same post or takes up a new one at this school.
- 6.14.5 Unqualified teachers are not eligible for teaching and learning or special educational needs allowances. The governing body will not under any circumstances determine a salary for an unqualified teacher outside of the unqualified teacher pay spine.

6.15 Unqualified Teachers' Allowance

- 6.15.1 The governing body has the discretion to award an additional allowance to an unqualified teacher where it considers that, in the context of its staffing structure the teacher has taken on a sustained additional responsibility which is focused on teaching and learning and requires the exercise of a teacher's professional skills and judgement, or where the teacher holds qualifications or experience which bring added value to the role being undertaken.
- 6.15.2 The governing body will pay an unqualified teacher on one of the employment based routes into teaching on the classroom teacher/unqualified teacher pay scale. The governing body may choose which pay scale will be applied to such teachers and in what circumstances. It is recommended that a graduate teacher be paid as a qualified teacher and a registered teacher as an unqualified teacher.

Page 14 of 32 Date of issue: 1 Oct 2019

7 Allowances for classroom teachers

7.1 Teaching and Learning Responsibility Payments

- 7.1.1 TLRs can only be awarded to posts held by qualified teachers paid on the main or upper payscale. They cannot be awarded to unqualified teachers, Leading Practitioners or members of the Leadership Group.
- 7.1.2 The pay committee may award a TLR to a classroom teacher in accordance with the STPCD.
- 7.1.3 TLR 1 or 2 payment will be made for undertaking a sustained additional responsibility in the schools staffing structure for the purpose of ensuring the continued delivery of high-quality teaching and learning and for which the teacher is made accountable.
- 7.1.4 All job descriptions will be regularly reviewed and will make clear the responsibility or package of responsibilities for which a TLR is awarded.
- 7.1.5 The pay committee may award a fixed-term TLR3 of between £555 and £2,757 for identifiably time-limited school improvement projects, the duration of the fixed-term must be established at the outset and payment should be made on a monthly basis for the duration of the fixed-term. Although a teacher cannot hold a TLR1 and a TLR2 concurrently, a teacher in receipt of either a TLR1 or a TLR2 may also hold a concurrent TLR3. No safeguarding will apply in relation to an award of a TLR3.
- 7.1.6 TLRs are awarded at the discretion of the governing body and will only be awarded if the governing body is satisfied that the duties of the post include a significant responsibility that is not required of all classroom teachers and that:
 - a) is focused on teaching and learning;
 - b) requires the exercise of a teacher's professional skills and judgement;
- 7.1.7 In addition to the above, the award of a TLR 1 or 2:
 - a) requires the teacher to lead, manage and develop a subject or curriculum area; or to lead and manage pupil development across the curriculum;
 - b) has an impact on the educational progress of pupils other than the teacher's assigned classes or groups of pupils, and;
 - c) involves leading, developing and enhancing the teaching practice of other staff.
- 7.1.8 In addition, before awarding a TLR1, the governing body must be satisfied that the significant responsibility referred to above includes line management responsibility for a significant number of people.
- 7.1.9 See Appendix 4 for the schedule of payments.

Page 15 of 32 Date of issue: 1 Oct 2019

7.2 Special Educational Needs Allowance

- 7.2.1 A Special Educational Needs (SEN) allowance can only be awarded to posts held by qualified teachers paid on the main or upper pay scale. They cannot be awarded to unqualified teachers, Leading Practitioners or members of the Leadership Group. The role of SENCO, as a managerial responsibility, is not one that meets the criteria for a SEN allowance, but rather it is more appropriately rewarded by a TLR payment. If, in addition to their SENCO role, a teacher meets the criteria set out in the STPCD, then they should be eligible for both a TLR payment and a SEN allowance. However, they are distinct payments one payable for additional responsibility, the other for the demands of the teaching role they are carrying out.
- 7.2.2 The governing body will award a SEN Allowance to a classroom teacher or SEN support teacher:
 - a) in any SEN post that requires a mandatory SEN qualification (not including the mandatory SENCO qualification leading to the achievement of the National Award for Special Educational Needs Co-Ordination),
 - b) in a special school,
 - who teaches pupils in one or more designated special classes or units in a school or, in the case of an unattached teacher, in a local authority unit or service,
 - d) in any non-designated setting (including any pupil referral unit) that is analogous to a designate special class or unit, where the post:
 - i. involves a substantial element of working directly with children with special educational needs,
 - ii. requires the exercise of a teacher's professional skills and judgment in the teaching of children with special educational needs, and
 - iii. has a greater level of involvement in the teaching of children with special educational needs than is the normal requirement of teachers throughout the schools or unit within the school or, in the case of an unattached teacher, the unit or service.
- 7.2.3 The SEN allowance is determined as a spot value, taking into account the structure of the school's SEN provision and:
 - a) whether any mandatory qualifications are required,
 - b) the qualifications and expertise of the teacher relevant to the post, and
 - c) the relative demands of the post.
- 7.2.4 The values of the SEN allowance to be awarded are set out in Appendix 4.

7.3 Additional allowances

Acting Allowance for Teachers

7.3.1 Where a teacher is assigned and carries out duties of a headteacher, deputy headteacher, or assistant headteacher, but has not been appointed as an acting headteacher, deputy

Page 16 of 32 Date of issue: 1 Oct 2019

headteacher or assistant headteacher, the governing body will, within the period of four weeks beginning on the day on which such duties are first assigned and carried out, determine whether or not an "acting allowance" must be paid in accordance with the following provisions.

- 7.3.2 Where the governing body determines that an acting allowance will not be paid but the relevant duties continue, then the governing body may review this decision and make a further determination at a future date as to whether or not an acting allowance may be paid.
- 7.3.3 If paid, the acting allowance will be of such value as to ensure that the teacher receives remuneration of equivalent value to such point on the leadership pay spine as the governing body has determined applies to the headteacher, deputy headteacher or assistant headteacher (as set out in this policy).
- 7.3.4 For as long as an acting allowance is being paid, the teacher will be expected to undertake the professional responsibilities applicable to a headteacher, deputy headteacher or assistant headteacher and work to the relevant teachers" standards.
- 7.3.5 Where a member of staff covers the full duties of a higher graded role on a temporary basis, for example to cover a vacancy or in the absence of the substantive post holder (other than to cover for annual leave), for the period of at least 12 weeks, they may be paid an acting allowance equivalent to the grade of the post they are covering. Acting arrangements are time limited and will be subject to regular review.
- 7.3.6 Where an employee who is not a teacher is undertaking partial duties of a higher graded role, a special recognition agreement may instead be considered.

7.4 Additional Payments

- 7.4.1 The relevant body may make such payments as it sees fit to a teacher in respect of:
 - a) Continuing professional development undertaken outside the school day;
 - b) Activities relating to the provision of initial teacher training as part of the ordinary conduct of the school;
 - c) Participation in out-of-school hours learning activity agreed formally between the teacher and the headteacher or governing body. Teachers will not be compelled to offer such an activity but, where they do, the governing body will expect a more formal commitment from the teacher and that the head teacher may direct the place, timing, frequency of the activity as well as which pupils take part and the content. In these circumstances, the school will offer a payment to the teacher equating to an appropriate value for example at a flat hourly rate.
 - d) In order to ensure effective work life balance and also value for money in the

Page 17 of 32 Date of issue: 1 Oct 2019

delivery of the services provided the governing body should consider carefully who is best placed to undertake these activities. It may not necessarily be a teacher and the use of support staff might be more appropriate. Activities should be offered to staff following a fair and transparent process.

e) Additional responsibilities and activities due to, or in respect of, the provision of services relating to the raising of educational standards to one or more additional schools.

7.5 Recruitment and retention incentives and benefits

- 7.5.1 Payments will not be made under the "recruitment and retention" criteria for additional work undertaken, for specific responsibilities or to supplement pay for reasons other than, under paragraphs 27.1 and 27.2, for the re-imbursement of reasonably incurred housing or relocation costs. Nor will any recruitment and retention payment be made to a headteacher, deputy or assistant headteacher; as the governing body will take into account recruitment and/or retention difficulties in determining the relevant pay range.
- 7.5.2 In the case of retention, a recommendation to offer incentives or benefits would be made by the headteacher for teachers to the pay committee.
- 7.5.3 Governing bodies are free to determine the value of any reward. In their determinations, the governing body should consider whether recruitment and retention incentives and benefits should be offered to new or existing teachers, and if so their nature, value, duration and the circumstances under which they may be paid.
- 7.5.4 Subject to paragraph 27.2 in the STPCD, governing bodies may consider introducing a salary advance scheme for a rental deposit as an additional tool for supporting the recruitment and retention of teachers.
- 7.5.5 These should be set out in writing and if necessary include a review date. The governing body must make budget provision for such payments. The governing body will be able to justify its decision and have clearly defined criteria for making such decisions.
- 7.5.6 The Governing Body will conduct a formal regular assessment of such award.

7.6 Part-time teachers

- 7.6.1 Teachers employed on an ongoing basis at the school who work less than a full working week are deemed to be part time. The governing body will ensure that part time teachers are given a written statement detailing their working time obligations (within and beyond the school day) and the standard mechanism used to determine their pay, subject to the provisions of the statutory pay arrangements and by comparison to the school's timetabled teaching week for a full time teacher in an equivalent post.
- 7.6.2 Part time teachers will be paid a pro-rata percentage of the appropriate full-time equivalent salary against the timetable week and the same percentages will be applied to

Page 18 of 32 Date of issue: 1 Oct 2019

- any allowances awarded, other than a TLR3.
- 7.6.3 Further guidance is available from the council to assist schools with calculating part- time entitlement and pay.

7.7 Short notice/supply teachers

- 7.7.1 Teachers employed on a day-to-day or other short notice basis must be paid in accordance with the STPCD 2019 on a daily rate calculated by dividing the annual amount by 195.
- 7.7.2 Teachers who work less than a full day will be hourly paid and will have their salary calculated by dividing the annual amount by 1,265 to give an hourly rate.
- 7.7.3 A short notice teacher who is employed by the school or another school in the authority throughout a period of 12 months (beginning August or September) will not be paid more in respect of that period that s/he would have if s/he had been in regular employment throughout the period.

7.8 Salary sacrifice

7.8.1 The governing body supports the following salary sacrifice arrangements: [governing body to insert details of salary sacrifrice arrangements.] e.g. Childcare vouchers, cycle scheme, etc.] Arrangements will be made to enable staff to participate in these schemes should they wish to do so.

7.9 Salary safeguarding

7.9.1 Salary safeguarding will be paid to eligible teachers and in line with the provisions of the STPCD.

8 Teacher Pay Appeals

- 8.1 Teachers may seek a review of any determination in relation to their pay or any other decision taken by the governing body (or a committee or individual acting with delegated authority) that affects their pay.
- 8.2 Appeals may be made on the grounds that the person or committee by whom the decision was made, for example:
 - a) Has incorrectly applied any provision of the STPCD;
 - b) Has failed to have proper regard for statutory guidance;
 - c) Has failed to take proper account of relevant evidence;
 - d) Was biased, and/or;
 - e) Otherwise unlawfully discriminated against the teacher concerned.

This list is not exhaustive.

8.3 Further detail on the order of proceedings for a teacher pay appeal is included in Page 19 of 32

Date of issue: 1 Oct 2019

Appendix 3.

Page 20 of 32 Date of issue: 1 Oct 2019

Appendix 1: Progression to the Upper Pay Range

It is the responsibility of teachers to decide whether they wish to apply to be paid on the Upper Pay Range. Determinations as to whether a teacher progresses to the upper pay range will be made in accordance with paragraph 15 of the STPCD 2019 and the process set out in this pay policy.

An application from a qualified teacher will be successful where the governing body is satisfied that the teacher has evidence of high performance in this school in the previous two years which shows that the teacher is highly competent in all elements of the teachers standards and that their achievements and contribution to the school are substantial and sustained and they are able to demonstrate that they have developed professionally in their teaching expertise.

In this school, teachers will be eligible to apply for progression where the teacher has progressed to the top of the school's main pay range. All applications should include the results of the two most recent appraisals in this school. Where such information is not applicable or available, e.g. those returning from maternity or sickness absence, a written statement and summary of evidence designed to demonstrate that the applicant has met the assessment criteria must be submitted by the applicant.

In order for the assessment to be robust and transparent, it will be an evidence-based process only. Further evidence can be produced as appropriate at the discretion of the headteacher. For example, in cases where a teacher has been absent, through disability or maternity, they may cite written evidence from a three-year period before the date of application in support of their application.

Process:

One application may be submitted annually. The closing date for applications is normally 31 October each year; however, exceptions will be made in particular circumstances, e.g. those teachers who are on maternity leave or who are currently on sick leave. The process for applications is:

- Complete the school's UPR application form (Appendix 2). Submit the application form and any supporting evidence the teacher wants to present to the headteacher by the closing date.
- Notification of the name of the assessor of the application will be sent to the teacher within 5 working days;
- The assessor will assess the application, which will include a recommendation to the pay committee of the relevant body;
- The application, evidence and recommendation will be passed to the headteacher for moderation purposes, if the headteacher is not the assessor;
- The pay committee will make the final decision, advised by the headteacher;
- Teachers will receive written notification of the outcome of their application by the 31st

Page 21 of 32 Date of issue: 1 Oct 2019

October 2019. Where the application is unsuccessful, the written notification will include the areas where it was felt that the teacher's performance did not satisfy the relevant criteria set out in this policy (see "Assessment" below).

- If requested, oral feedback will be provided by the assessor. Oral feedback will be given within 10 school days of the date of notification of the outcome of the application. Feedback will be given in a positive and encouraging environment and will include advice and support on areas for improvement in order to meet the relevant criteria.
- Successful applicants will move to the minimum of the UPR backdated to 1 September of the year of application.
- Unsuccessful applicants can appeal the decision. The appeals process is set out in this pay policy.

Assessment:

The teacher will be required to meet the criteria set out in paragraph 15 of the STPCD, namely that:

- The teacher is highly competent in all elements of the relevant standards; and
- The teacher's achievements and contribution to the school are substantial and sustained.

In this school, this means:

"highly competent": the teacher's performance is assessed as having excellent depth and breadth of knowledge, skill and application of the Teachers' Standards in the particular role they are fulfilling and the context in which they are working.

"substantial": the teacher's achievements and contribution to the school are significant, not just in raising standards of teaching and learning in their own classroom, or with their own groups of children, but also in making a positive contribution to the wider life and ethos of the school, which impacts on pupil progress and the effectiveness of staff and colleagues.

"sustained": the teacher must have had two consecutive successful appraisal reports in this school and have made good progress towards their objectives during this period (see paragraph 5.1 of this policy). They will have been expected to have shown that their teaching expertise has grown over the relevant period and is consistently in line with the expectations contained in the school's appraisal policy.

For further information, including information on supporting evidence, please refer to the teacher appraisal policy.

If a teacher is simultaneously employed at another school(s), they may submit separate applications if they wish to apply to be paid on the upper pay range in that school or schools. This will not be bound by any pay decisions made by another school.

Progression to the upper pay range is permanent, while the teacher remains in the same

Page 22 of 32 Date of issue: 1 Oct 2019

post or takes up another post in this school.

Page 23 of 32 Date of issue: 1 Oct 2019

Appendix 2: Application to be paid on the Upper Pay Range

Name: Job Title: School: Date of application: Date of last application (as appropriate): Written Statement: **Details of Performance Management/Appraisal:** Years covered by planning/review statements Schools covered by planning/review statements **Summary of application** (Continue on additional sheets if needed)

Declaration

Personal Information:

I confirm that at the date of this request for assessment I meet the eligibility criteria and I submit the performance management/appraisal (and brief supporting evidence as appropriate).

Signed (applicant):

Date:

Appendix 3 - Teacher Pay Appeals

Stage 1 – Representation Hearing

- 1. For the representation hearing and appeal hearing, the teacher may be accompanied by a colleague or trade union representative.
- 2. The teacher receives written confirmation of the pay determination and, where applicable, the basis on which the decision was made.
- 3. If the teacher wishes to discuss the decision, or make representations, he/she should do so in writing to the chair of the Pay Committee, within ten working days of the decision. The letter should outline the grounds of appeal.
- 4. The Pay Committee will arrange to meet the teacher to discuss the issues within 20 working days. The head teacher should also attend the meeting to clarify the grounds for the recommendation.
- 5. The Pay Committee will further consider the decision and will write to the teacher with the outcome.
- 6. Where the teacher continues to be dissatisfied, he/she may proceed to stage 2 of the process.

Stage 2 - Appeal Hearing

- 1. The teacher should set out in writing the grounds for appealing the pay decision and send it to the Chair of the Appeal Committee / head teacher / other designated person (as determined by the governing body) within ten school working days of receipt of the written outcome of the stage 1 decision (see above)
- 2. The Clerk to Governors will arrange for an appeal hearing to take place, normally within 20 school working days of the receipt of the written appeal notification.
- 3. The appeal should be heard by a panel of three eligible governors who were not involved in the original decision.
- 4. The procedure for formal appeal meetings will be:
 - 4.1 Chair introduces everyone and their role in the proceedings. Those required to attend:
 - a. Chair and other panel members
 - b. Employee and employee representative (if accompanying employee)

- c. Any witnesses for the employee side
- d. Pay Committee representative who will state the management case
- e. Any witnesses for the management side
- f. Clerk to the meeting
- g. HR Adviser to give advice to the panel (if in attendance)
- 4.2 The teacher will present their case including any evidence they wish to have considered and any witnesses to support their case.
- 4.3 Chair and/or panel members ask questions.
- 4.4 Pay Committee representative will state their case including the evidence on which the decision was based and any witnesses to support the case.
- 4.5 Chair and/or panel members ask questions of the management.
- 4.6 Both parties may make a closing statement if they wish.
- 4.7 The Appeal Committee will then consider all the evidence in private and reach a decision.
- 4.8 The Appeal Committee will write to the teacher outlining its decision and the reason/s for it.
- 4.9 The decision of the Appeal Committee is final.

Appendix 4 – Teachers Pay Scales for 2019/20

1.1 SCHOOL TEACHERS - LEADERSHIP GROUP

	HARINGEY COUNCIL TEACHERS - LEADERSHIP GROUP PAY SCALES										
	1st September 2019										
	Old	New		Grp		Grp	Grp		Grp	Grp	
Sp PT	Rate	Rate	Scale	1	Grp 2	3	4	Grp 5	6	7	Grp 8
1	47517	48824	LEAD'SHP								
2	48521	49857	LEAD'SHP								
3	49548	50912	LEAD'SHP								
4	50592	51984	LEAD'SHP								
5	51670	53091	LEAD'SHP								
6	52771	54223	LEAD'SHP	Χ							
7	53992	55477	LEAD'SHP	Χ							
8	55061	56576	LEAD'SHP	Χ	Χ						
9	56242	57790	LEAD'SHP	Χ	Χ						
10	57494	59076	LEAD'SHP	Χ	Х						
11	58787	60404	LEAD'SHP	Χ	Χ	Х					
12	59973	61624	LEAD'SHP	Χ	Χ	Х					
13	61282	62968	LEAD'SHP	X	Χ	Х					
14	62621	64344	LEAD'SHP	Χ	Χ	Х	Х				
15	63987	65747	LEAD'SHP	X	Х	Х	Х				
16	65493	67295	LEAD'SHP	Χ	Χ	Х	Х				
17	66825	68663	LEAD'SHP	X	Χ	Х	Х				
18	67638	69499	LEAD'SHP	Χ							
18	68315	70194	LEAD'SHP		Χ	Х	Х	Χ			
19	69821	71742	LEAD'SHP		Х	Х	Х	X			
20	71365	73328	LEAD'SHP		Х	Χ	Х	Х			
21	72221	74208	LEAD'SHP		Х		1				
21	72943	74949	LEAD'SHP			Х	Х	Χ	X		
22	74567	76618	LEAD'SHP			Х	Х	Х	X		
23	76220	78318	LEAD'SHP			Х	Х	Х	Х		
24	77158	79280	LEAD'SHP			Х					
24	77930	80074	LEAD'SHP				X	Х	Χ	Х	
25	79674	81867	LEAD'SHP				X	Х	Χ	Х	
26	81458	83699	LEAD'SHP				Χ	Х	Х	Х	
27	82463	84731	LEAD'SHP				Χ				
27	83288	85579	LEAD'SHP					Х	Χ	Х	
28	85169	87512	LEAD'SHP					Х	Х	Х	Х
29	87094	89491	LEAD'SHP					Х	Х	Х	Х
30	89071	91522	LEAD'SHP					Χ	Х	Х	Х
31	90186	92667	LEAD'SHP					Х			
31	91088	93594	LEAD'SHP						Χ	X	Χ
32	93160	95722	LEAD'SHP						X	X	X
33	95289	97911	LEAD'SHP						Χ	Χ	Χ

34	97458	100140	LEAD'SHP			Χ	Х	Х
35	98706	101421	LEAD'SHP			Χ		
35	99693	102436	LEAD'SHP				Χ	Х
36	101971	104776	LEAD'SHP				Χ	Х
37	104325	107194	LEAD'SHP				Χ	Х
38	106712	109648	LEAD'SHP				Χ	Х
39	108048	111020	LEAD'SHP				Х	
39	109129	112131	LEAD'SHP					Х
40	111670	114742	LEAD'SHP					Χ
41	114273	117416	LEAD'SHP					Х
42	116939	120156	LEAD'SHP					Χ
43	118490	121749	LEAD'SHP		ļ			Х

1.1.2 SCHOOL TEACHERS – LEADING PRACTITIONERS

HARINGEY COUNCIL LEADING PRACTITIONER SCALE 1ST SEPTEMBER 2019

Co DT	Old Rate	New	Scales	Cn DT		Old	New	Sooloo
Sp PT	Old Rate	Rate	Scales	Sp PT		Rate	Rate	Scales
						5937	6101	
1	47751	49065	LP		7	9	1	LP
						6157	6326	
2	49521	50883	LP		8	5	7	LP
						6385	6561	
3	51351	52764	LP		9	8	3	LP
						6621	6804	
4	53250	54714	LP		10	9	0	LP
						6865	7054	
5	55221	56739	LP		11	2	0	LP
6	56784	58347	LP					

1.1.3 SCHOOL TEACHERS – QUALIFIED CLASSROOM TEACHER

HARINGEY COUNCIL QUALIFIED TEACHER SCALE 1ST SEPTEMBER 2019

Sp PT	Old Rate	New Rate	Scales	Sp PT	Old Rate	New Rate	Scales
1	29664	30480	QTEACH	4	34547	35499	QTEACH
2	31210	32070	QTEACH	5	37205	38230	QTEACH
3	32836	33741	QTEACH	6	40372	41483	QTEACH

1.1.4 SCHOOL TEACHERS – UPPER PAY RANGE

HARINGEY COUNCIL TEACHERS - UPPER PAY SCALE
1st September 2019

Sp PT	Old Rate	New Rate	Scales
1	44489	45713	PTQTEACH
2	46675	47960	PTQTEACH
3	48244	49571	PTQTEACH

1.1.5 SCHOOL TEACHERS - UNQUALIFIED TEACHERS

HARINGEY COUNCIL TEACHERS - UNQUALIFIED PAY SCALES
1st September 2019

Sp PT	Old Rate	New Rate	Scales
1	21641	22237	UQ TEACH
2	23641	24293	UQ TEACH
3	25643	26350	UQ TEACH
4	27644	28405	UQ TEACH
5	29643	30460	UQ TEACH
6	31644	32515	UQ TEACH

Appendix A

1.1.6 SCHOOL TEACHERS – ALLOWANCES

HARINGEY COUNCIL TEACHERS - ALLOWANCES
1st September 2019

Teaching & Learning Responsibility						
PT	Old Rate	New Rate				
2a	2721	2796				
2b	4530	4656				
2c	6646	6829				
1a	7853	8069				
1b	9657	9924				
1c	11466	11781				
1d	13288	13654				
3 Min	540	555				
3 Max	2683	2757				

Recruitment & Retention							
PT	Old Rate	New Rate					
1	1002	1002					
2	1970	1970					
3	2985	2985					
4	4158	4158					
5	5415	5415					

Special Needs							
PT	Old Rate	New Rate					
1	2149	2209					
2	4242	4359					